

# REQUEST FOR TENDER (RFT) WORKS

RFT NUMBER: 261/20/WK/RFT/EF/SH/BU/VIF/PWD

DESCRIPTION: Works on Grandstand Seating at Independence Park Port Vila -

in Preparation for the 40th Anniversary of Independence

Celebrations in July 2020

**EMPLOYER:** Public Works Department

Ministry of Infrastructure and Public Utilities

PMB 9044, Port Vila, Vanuatu

**TENDER** Office of the Central Tenders Board

**SUBMISSION** Ministry of Finance and Economic Management

ADDRESS: S.I.P. Building PMB 9058

Port Vila. Vanuatu

SUBMISSION 10am, 15<sup>th</sup> May 2020

DATE & TIME:

OPENING DATE: 3pm, 15th May 2020



# REQUEST FOR TENDER

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF TENDERING (GCT)	
SECTION 2 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF TENDERING	15
SECTION 3 - EMPLOYER'S TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	18
SCHEDULE OF WORKS	18
Introduction	18
Project Location & Site Layout	18
Site Visit	18
Scope Of Work	18
Drawings	23
Standards of Work	23
Quality Management	23
Project Administration	23
Work Health and Safety	24
Environmental	24
Handover & Completion	24
Attachment 1: Site Location and Layout	26
Attachment 2: Site Photographs	27
Attachment 3: Drawings	31
SECTION 4 - TENDER RESPONSE SCHEDULES	32
SECTION 5 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	42
SECTION 5 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	43



# **LETTER OF INVITATION**

To: Potential Bidder	RFT No.	261/20/WK/RFT/EF/SH/BU/VIF/PWD
	Date Issued	Monday 4 <sup>th</sup> May 2020
	Validity of Tender	60 days
	Location of Works	Independence Park Port Vila
	Completion Date	10 July 2020
Submission Date and Time (VATime)	NUATU Local	10am, Friday 15 <sup>th</sup> May 2020
Opening date and time:		3pm, Friday 15 <sup>th</sup> May 2020

# Works Required

Works on Grandstand Seating at Independence Park Port Vila - in Preparation for the 40th Anniversary of Independence Celebrations in July 2020, including:

- i. Mobilization to site with all equipment, machinery, personnel, materials and sundry items required to complete the works.
- ii. Conduct a project pre-start meeting with the Project Manager.
- iii. Establishment of site office, tools shed and resources area. Installation of PWD approved site signage.
- iv. Verify all measurements as indicated on the drawings.
- v. Undertake works including:
  - a. Undertake repairs to the existing grandstand seating structure including replacement of rusted/corroded footings, replacement of rotted and damaged timber and connections and replacement of roof sheeting.
  - b. Construction of two new grandstand seating wings to the existing grandstand. The new structures are to match the existing in layout and materials construction.
  - c. Materials supply and construction of temporary grandstand seating to the northern, southern and western sides of independence park to increase seating capacity by 2,000 seats.

DUDCHASED Droject	Not applicable
PURCHASER Project	Not applicable
-	•••
Code	
0040	

You are invited to submit a Tender in response to this Request for Tender (RFT). The Works are being procured by Public Works Department (the "Employer"). The completed Tender must be signed by your authorised representative and must be valid for a minimum period as indicated above from the Closing Date of the RFT.

This Tender is open only to Tenderers who have been selected to respond to the RFT. Tenderers may only associate with each other either under a consortium, joint venture or association relationship, or under a sub-contractual agreement to complement their respective areas of supply to enhance their capacity to perform the Works.



# This Invitation to Tender comprises of:

Section 1	General Conditions of Tendering
Section 2	Special Conditions of Tendering
Section 3	Employer's Technical Specifications
Section 4	Tender Response Schedules
Section 5	General Conditions of Contract
Section 6	Special Conditions of Contract
Section 7	Forms

Section 7 Forms

It is critical that selected Tenderers undertake a site visit of the intended project site and familiarise themselves of the project details and requirements.

The successful Tenderer will be selected using the evaluation procedure described in the RFT to enter into a contract agreement with the Government of the Republic of Vanuatu

Payments made against any Contract arising from this Tender will be made in the currency of the Tender and the Contract.

The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Tender, and to cancel the Tender process and reject all Tenders, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Tenderer(s).

Instructions on how to respond to the Tender are provided in this RFT.

Please submit your Tender by mail, courier or hand delivered to the address stated on the cover page of the RFT in a sealed envelope/ package, marked as requested in this RFT. Your Tender must be received before the Closing Date and Time for submission of Tenders. Tenders received after this deadline shall not be considered and shall be rejected

# Signed:

Name: Harrison Luen Title/Position: Director General

Ministry of Infrastructure and Public Utilities Address:

PMB 9044. Port Vila

(For and on behalf of the Purchaser)



# **SECTION 1 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF TENDERING (GCT)**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1.1. PREPARATION OF TENDERS	6
1.2. VALIDITY OF TENDER	7
1.3. ELIGIBILITY OF THE TENDERER, EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES	7
1.4. QUALIFICATIONS OF THE TENDERER	8
1.5. CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT PRACTICES	9
1.6. PRE-TENDER MEETING, CLARIFICATIONS AND ADDENDA	9
1.7. TENDER PRICES, CURRENCIES, PAYMENTS AND TAXES	9
1.8. SUBCONTRACTORS	10
1.9. THE RIGHT TO VARY QUANTITIES	10
1.10.TENDER SECURITY	10
1.11.TENDER SUBMISSION AND OPENING	11
1.12.EXAMINATION AND EVALUATION OF TENDERS	11
1.13.ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF ANY OR ALL TENDERS	13
1.14.APPROVAL AND NOTIFICATION OF CONTRACT AWARD	13
1.15.PERFORMANCE SECURITY	13
1.16.DEBRIEFING OF UNSUCCESSFUL TENDERERS	13
1.17.SIGNING OF CONTRACT	13
1.18.DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENTS	13



# **GENERAL CONDITIONS OF TENDER**

# **PREPARATION OF TENDERS**

- 1.1.1. The Employer invites Tenders for the construction of Works as described in the Employer's Technical Specifications (See Section 3) of this RFT. The Tenderer shall inform itself fully of all circumstances and conditions relating to submitting a Tender, including site visits if appropriate, and shall satisfy itself as to the correctness and sufficiency of the RFT documentation.
- 1.1.2. The estimated timeframe for commencement and completion of the Works is given in the Special Conditions of Tendering (SCT) (See Section 2).
- 1.1.3. The Tenderer shall prepare its Tender using the Tender Response Schedules (TRS) as detailed in the SCT. In case of a consortium, association or joint venture, each member shall complete the TRS. The completed and signed TRS, together with the required supporting documentation will form the Tender and shall be the basis on which the Tender will be evaluated.
- 1.1.4. The Tenderer shall provide with the tender the following:
  - (a) Proposed Work Method Statement and Construction Programme, giving descriptions, drawings, charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the Employer's Technical Specifications. Any Tender that is not submitted with a proposed Work Method Statement and Construction Programme will be regarded as non-responsive and shall be rejected;
  - (b) One only of the following as stated in the **SCT**:
    - i. In the case of the basis of payment under the contract being the actual quantities of work ordered and carried, a Bill of Quantities
    - ii. In the case of the basis of payment under the Contract being the tendered lump sum, a Schedule of Activities.

The preamble and instructions for completing a Bill of Quantities or a Schedule of Activities, as required, are contained in Section 3, the Employer's Technical Specifications.

- 1.1.5. A Tenderer who submits or participates as a member of a Consortium, Joint-Venture or association in more than one Tender will cause all the Tenders with that Tenderer's participation to be disqualified. However, any firm or organisation is permitted to be a sub-contractor to more than one Tenderer.
- 1.1.6. Alternative Tender(s) shall only be permitted if so stated in the **SCT**.
- 1.1.7. The Tenderer shall prepare one original and three copies of the TRS, prepared in the English language. The Tenderer shall enclose the original and the copies, attaching the relevant documents as required by the TRS in one sealed envelope (or parcel) and clearly mark it with the RFT Works number, the Tender description and the name and address of the Employer, the Tenderer's name and address, and the submission time and date. The outer envelope must also bear the statement "Not to be opened before the tender opening session".
- 1.1.8. The Tenderer may withdraw its Tender before the deadline for submission of Tenders by submitting a notice of withdrawal. The notice must be submitted in an envelope



- identifying the Works RFT and clearly labelled "Withdrawal of Tender". The withdrawal will be announced at the Tender Opening, but the withdrawn Tender will not be opened nor further considered.
- 1.1.9. The Tenderer may amend its Tender before the deadline for submission of Tenders by submitting a notice of amendment. The notice, and amended Tender, must be submitted in an envelope identifying the RFT and clearly labelled "Amendment of Tender". The amended Tender will be opened and announced at the Tender Opening and considered in the subsequent evaluation of Tenders.
- 1.1.10. The Employer will not be responsible for, or pay for, any expense or loss, which may be incurred by a Tenderer in the preparation and submission of its Tender.
- 1.1.11. The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Tenders by amending the Tender Document in accordance with Section 1.6.3 in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Tenderers previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 1.1.12. An authorised representative of the Tenderer shall sign the original Tender. The authorisation shall be in the form of a written power of attorney accompanying the Tender or in any other form demonstrating that the representative has been duly authorised to sign and legally bind the Tenderer.

#### **VALIDITY OF TENDER**

1.2.1. The Tender shall remain valid for the validity period stated in the SCT from the closing date for Tenders. In exceptional circumstances, the Employer may request that Tenderers extend the Tender validity period. The request and the Tenderer's response shall be made in writing. The Tenderer may refuse the request, but its Tender will no longer be considered. The Tenderer agreeing to the request will not be required or permitted to otherwise modify its Tender for the period of the extension.

# **ELIGIBILITY OF THE TENDERER, EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES**

- 1.3.1. A Tenderer may be a natural person, private entity, or government-owned entity or any combination of them in the form of a joint venture, consortium or association, under an existing agreement, or with the intent to constitute a legally enforceable joint venture, consortium or association. Government-owned enterprises in Vanuatu may only participate if they are legally and financially autonomous, operate under commercial law, and are not a dependent entity of the Government.
- 1.3.2. All members of a joint venture, consortium or association (other than sub-contractors) shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The joint venture, consortium or association agreement shall explicitly provide for the joint and several liability of the members towards the Employer. The joint venture, consortium or association agreement shall be included with the tender.
- 1.3.3. Except as provided for in Clause 1.3.4 Tenderers shall not be excluded from tendering on the basis of nationality, degree of foreign affiliation or ownership, location, size, race or other criterion, not having to do with their qualifications or decisions taken against any Tenderer under Clause 1.4.



- 1.3.4. The Tenderer, including all members constituting the Tenderer, shall not have the nationality of any country that is prohibited by the legislation of the Republic of Vanuatu or by any international Agreement to which Vanuatu is a signatory, or by an Act of Compliance with a Decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. These countries and any applicable conditions are listed in the SCT. These countries and any applicable conditions are listed in the SCT.
- 1.3.5. Materials, equipment and services must not be supplied from those countries that are prohibited by the legislation of the Republic of Vanuatu or by any international Agreement of which the Republic of Vanuatu is a signatory, or by an Act of Compliance with a Decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. These countries and any applicable conditions are listed in the SCT.
- 1.3.6. If the Tenderer is a joint venture, consortium or association (this does not include sub-contractors) all of the members shall appoint one member to act as the Member-in-Charge with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium or association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Employer.
- 1.3.7. The Tenderer must meet the following eligibility criteria:
  - (a) Must be registered in its country of origin;
  - (b) Be free from insolvency, bankruptcy or similar status;
  - (c) Have the legal capacity to enter into contract;
  - (d) Be current with payments of taxes;
  - (e) Not be ineligible pursuant to Clause 1.5:
  - (f) The Tenderer and any director, officer, manager or supervisor of the Tenderer has not, within a period of 3 years preceding the date of issuance of the invitation to Tender been convicted of any criminal offence, whether in Vanuatu or elsewhere:
    - (i) Relating to his professional conduct;
    - (ii) Relating to the making of false statements or misrepresentations as to his qualifications to enter into a procurement contract;
    - (iii) Involving dishonesty:
    - (iv) Under anti-corruption legislation; and
  - (g) Not be suspended or disbarred by administrative or judicial proceedings from participating in procurements, whether in Vanuatu or elsewhere.

# **QUALIFICATIONS OF THE TENDERER**

- 1.4.1. To qualify for an award of Contract, Tenderers shall demonstrate that they possess the necessary professional and technical qualifications and competence, financial resources, equipment and other physical facilities, managerial capability, experience in the type of Works that are the object of this RFT business reputation and personnel to perform the Contract.
- 1.4.2. Tenderers shall meet the following minimum qualifying criteria.
  - (a) Have an average turnover of construction work in the last three years of at least the amount specified in the **SCT**;
  - (b) Provide three examples of work of a similar nature and complexity completed in the last three years;
  - (c) Availability of minimum liquid assets or working capital or credit facilities from a Bank, as specified in the **SCT**;



- (d) Provide a suitable Site Manager with the qualifications stated in the **SCT**, and with experience in works of an equivalent nature and volume, a minimum experience as a Site Manager over the period stated in the **SCT**;
- (e) Provide a list of key equipment for the completion of the works with proposals for its timely acquisition (own, lease, hire, etc.); the required minimum equipment is provided in the **SCT**;
- (f) Any other criteria as specified in the SCT.
- 1.4.3. The Employer shall disqualify a Tenderer:
  - (a) If it finds that the information submitted in a Tender concerning its qualifications is false, misleading, inaccurate or materially incomplete, or
  - (b) Whose Tender has previously been rejected by the Employer under Clause 1.5.4 below, or under Clause 5.13.1 of the General Conditions of Contract (GCC).

# **CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT PRACTICES**

- 1.5.1. The Employer requires that Tenderers observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement proceedings and the execution of contracts.
- 1.5.2. The Employer defines corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices, for the purpose of this provision in Clause 5.13.1 of the General Conditions of Contract (GCC).
- 1.5.3. Should any corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practice of any kind come to the knowledge of the Employer, it shall, in the first place, allow the Tenderer to provide an explanation and shall take actions as below when a satisfactory explanation is not received.
- 1.5.4. In pursuance of this requirement, the Employer will, in the absence of an explanation that is satisfactory to the Employer, reject a Tender if it determines that the Tenderer recommended for award has, directly or through an agent or other third party, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question.

#### PRE-TENDER MEETING, CLARIFICATIONS AND ADDENDA

- 1.6.1. If any Pre-Tender/Site Meeting is to be held, the time, date and location will be stated in the **SCT**.
- 1.6.2. The Tenderer may seek clarifications of the RFT by contacting in writing the Employer named in the SCT, no later than 10 days before the Tender submission closing date. The Employer shall send its response simultaneously to all Tenderers in writing, without disclosing the identity of the Tenderer requesting the clarification, or the identity of the other tenderers, no later than 7 days before the Tender submission closing date.
- 1.6.3. If for any reason the RFT has to be amended, the Employer will modify it by issuing an Addendum in writing, which should be acknowledged in writing by the Tenderer. The Tenderer should note that such an Addendum will form part of the RFT and may, if required, cause an extension of the tender submission closing date and time.

# TENDER PRICES, CURRENCIES, PAYMENTS AND TAXES

1.7.1. The Tenderer must provide with the tender a completed Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Activities as stated in the **SCT** giving full prices with its tender.



- 1.7.2. Prices shall be stated in Vanuatu Vatu (VUV) or, if requested in the **SCT** any freely convertible currency and all payments made under the Contract shall be made in the currency(ies) stated in the Tender.
- 1.7.3. Taxes and duties shall be as stated in the **SCT**.

#### SUBCONTRACTORS

1.8.1. If the Tenderer proposes to subcontract any component comprising more than 10% of the value of the Works, the Tenderer shall provide details of the proposed subcontractors, indicating the proposed part of the Works to be subcontracted and the previous relevant experience of that subcontractor, including a statement that the proposed subcontractor(s) is/are eligible under the conditions of the RFT and qualified to perform that part of the works. Additionally, such subcontractors shall complete the TRS and provide with the tender supporting documentation as detailed in the SCT (if these are not required of subcontractors, the SCT will explicitly state).

# THE RIGHT TO VARY QUANTITIES

1.9.1 At the time the Contract is awarded the Employer reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantities, provided this does not exceed the percentage stated in the SCT, and without any change in the unit costs quoted in the Tender, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions in the RFT.

## **TENDER SECURITY**

- 1.10.1. If a Tender Security is required, it shall be in the amount and currency stated in the **SCT**. The Tenderer has the option of submitting it either by means of:
  - (a) A bankers cheque; or
  - (b) An unconditional Bank Guarantee, in the format shown in Section 7.
- 1.10.2. The Tender Security shall be valid for 30 days beyond the original Tender validity period, or for 30 days beyond any extended Tender validity period, if one has been requested
- 1.10.3. The original of the Tender Security shall be included with the TRS, photocopies will not be accepted. If a Tender Security is required, any Tender not accompanied by a Tender Security will be rejected by the Employer.
- 1.10.4. The Tender Security of the successful Tenderer will be discharged when the successful Tenderer has signed the Contract Agreement and the required Performance Security has been received by the Employer.
- 1.10.5. The Tender Security for unsuccessful Tenderers will be returned upon expiry of the term of the security or formation of a contract with the successful tender and submission by the successful Tenderer of any required Performance Security, whichever is earlier.
- 1.10.6. The Tender Security may be forfeited if:
  - (a) Any Tenderer withdraws its Tender during the period of tender validity specified in Clause 1.2; or does not accept the correction of arithmetical errors; or (b) The successful Tenderer fails to provide a Performance Security, if required to do so by Clause 1.14; or to sign a contract in accordance with Clause 1.16.



# **TENDER SUBMISSION AND OPENING**

- 1.11.1. Tenders may only be delivered by hand, mail or by courier service in a sealed envelope/ package, marked as requested in the **SCT**, at the address, and, not later than, the time and date stated on the cover page of the RFT.
- 1.11.2. Tenders shall be opened at the place of submission stated on the cover page of the RFT, immediately after the time for submission of Tenders, in the presence of the Tenderers and/or their representatives who choose to attend.
- 1.11.3. The name and address of the Tenderer submitting the Tender together with the tendered total cost shall be read out and recorded. The Tender will be checked to ensure all required documents are present. If required as per Clause 1.9.1 the presence of the Tender Security will also be checked and the result read out.
- 1.11.4. A record of the Tender Opening will be prepared, including the information disclosed during the opening. Copies of the Record will be provided to all Tenderers who submitted a Tender.
- 1.11.5. A Tender received after the deadline for submission will be rejected, will remain unopened, and may be collected by the Tenderer if it so wishes. If not collected within 3 months of the Tender closing date it will be disposed of.

# **EXAMINATION AND EVALUATION OF TENDERS**

- 1.12.1. All Tenders properly received shall be evaluated by a Technical Officer appointed by the Chairperson of the Tenders Board on behalf of the Employer. The Technical Officer's determination of a Tender's compliance shall be based upon the contents of the Tender itself.
- 1.12.2. The Technical Officer shall evaluate the Tender on behalf of the Employer on the basis of its compliance to the Technical Specifications (see Section 3).
- 1.12.3. To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of Tenders, the Technical Officer may:
  - (a) Ask Tenderers for written clarification of their Tenders including breakdown of costs, but no change in the cost or substance of the Tender will be sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetical errors discovered by the Technical Officer during the evaluation of Tenders. The Tenderer shall within the time specified comply with any such requests.
  - (b) Make corrections for any computational errors. Corrections of computational errors will be made as indicated at Clause 1.11.5 below. For purpose of evaluating Financial Proposals, all prices quoted shall be converted into VUV using the selling rate of the Reserve Bank of the Republic of Vanuatu at the closing date for submission of the Tenders.
- 1.12.4. Any attempt by a Tenderer to influence the Technical Officer evaluation of Tenders or the CTB's award decisions will result in the rejection of its Tender.
- 1.12.5. Preliminary Examination

Prior to the detailed evaluation of Tenders, the Technical Officer will determine whether each Tender:



- (a) Has been properly signed;
- (b) Is from an eligible Tenderer;
- (c) Is accompanied by the required Tender Security; and
- (d) Has been completed in accordance with the RFT.

#### 1.12.6. Detailed Evaluation

- (1) Each Tender will be subjected to a detailed examination to determine whether it is substantially responsive in that it adequately meets:
  - (a) The minimum specified qualifying criteria; and
  - (b) The minimum employer's technical specifications; and
  - © The completed Tender Response Schedules provided in Section 4 of the RFT, as required in the GCT and SCT, accompanied by the required supporting documentation required in the RFT.
- (2) A substantially responsive Tender is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the RFT, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one that:
  - (a) Affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works specified in the Employer's Technical Specifications;
  - (b) Limits in any substantial way the Employer's rights or the Tenderer's obligations under the Contract;
  - (c) If rectified would affect unfairly the competitive position of other Tenderers presenting substantially responsive Tenders.
  - (3) If a Tender is not substantially responsive it will be rejected by the Technical Officer and may not subsequently be made responsive by the Tenderer by correction or withdrawal of the nonconforming deviation or reservation.

#### 1.12.7. Financial Examination

- (1) Only those Tenders that are considered substantially responsive will be considered for financial evaluation.
- (2) The Technical Officer will determine for each Tender the evaluated Tender price by adjusting the Tender price as follows:
  - a) Making any corrections for arithmetical errors;
    - (i) Where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words the amount in words will govern;
    - (ii) In the case of a Bill of Quantities where there is a discrepancy between the unit rates and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate quoted will govern;
    - (iii) In the case of a Schedule of Activities the total price offered will govern;
  - b) Making appropriate adjustments to reflect discounts (if any).
- (3) Following this, the Technical Officer will compare all evaluated Tenders and rank them accordingly, with the lowest priced technically compliant (substantially responsive) Tender being ranked No. 1, and so on.
- (4) For evaluation and comparison purposes only, and if multiple currencies where allowed in tendering, all prices quoted shall be converted into VUV using the VUV selling rate of the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu, at the closing date for submission of the Tenders.



# ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF ANY OR ALL TENDERS

1.13.1. The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Tender, and to cancel the Tender process and reject all Tenders, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Tenderer(s).

## APPROVAL AND NOTIFICATION OF CONTRACT AWARD

- 1.14.1. The Contract will be awarded to the Tenderer whose Tender is substantially responsive and offers the lowest price.
- 1.14.2. Following the approval of the award the award decision shall be notified to all participating tenderers and no contract may be entered before 10 days have elapsed from the date of such notification.

#### PERFORMANCE SECURITY

- 1.15.1. Together with the Contract the successful Tenderer shall deliver to the Employer, if required by the SCT, a Performance Security in the amount and for the period stated in the SCT, in the format specified in Section 7. The Performance Security shall be issued by an institution/authority acceptable to the Employer.
- 1.15.2. Failure of the successful Tenderer to submit a Performance Security will constitute sufficient grounds for the cancellation of the award.
- 1.15.3. In such an event, the Employer shall award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Tenderer whose Tender is substantially responsive and has been determined by the Employer to be eligible and qualified to satisfactorily perform the Contract, subject to the Employer's right to reject all Tenders in accordance with Clause 1.13.

# **DEBRIEFING OF UNSUCCESSFUL TENDERERS**

1.16.1. Within 10 days of receipt of a written request by any unsuccessful Tenderer, but not before a contract is signed with the successful tenderer, the Employer shall communicate the reasons why its Tender was not successful.

#### SIGNING OF CONTRACT

- 1.17.1. 10 days after the notification of the award decision to all participating tenderers the Employer shall send to the successful Tenderer two (2) sets of the unsigned Contract.
- 1.17.2. The successful Tenderer may be required to provide documentation, or additional documentation, evidencing its qualifications prior to Contract signature.
- 1.17.3. Within 7 days of receipt of the two (2) sets of the Contract Agreement the successful Tenderer shall sign, date and return both to the Employer.
- 1.17.4. The delegated representative of the Government of Vanuatu on behalf of the Employer will sign both Contracts and return one to the Tenderer.

# **DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENTS**

- 1.18.1. The Parties agree that the avoidance or early resolution of disputes is crucial for a smooth execution of the Contract and the success of the assignment. The Parties shall use their best efforts to negotiate all disputes arising out of, or in connection, with this Contract or its interpretation.
- 1.18.2. Failing successful negotiation any disputes will be settled by the courts in Vanuatu.





# **SECTION 2 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF TENDERING**

These Special Conditions of Tender (**SCT**) apply to this Request for Tender (**RFT**) and supplement Section 1: General Conditions of Tendering.

Tender Number: 261/20/WK/RFT/EF/SH/BU/VIF/PWD

Tender Name: Works on Grandstand Seating at Independence Park - Port Vila in

preparation for 40th Anniversary of Independence Celebrations in July

2020

Clause Ref.	Heading	Description
1.1.2	Estimated timeframe for	Commence works 13 April 2020
	t and completion	Complete Works by 10 July 2020
1.1.3	Tender Response Schedules and other required documentation	The tenderer is to complete tender response schedules: 1, 1.1, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, 2.7, 2.8, 2.9 & 2.10.
1.1.4	Basis of payment under the Contract and the type of document required	The basis of payment under the contract is the tendered lump sum and the document required to be completed and included with the Tender is a Schedule of Activities.
1.1.6	Alternative tenders	Alternative Tenders are not allowed
1.2	Validity of Tender	60 days from closing date
1.3.4 & 1.3.5	Prohibited countries	Not applicable
1.3.7	Documentation to demonstrate that eligibility criteria are met	As specified in tender schedule 1.9.
1.4.2 (a)	Qualification criteria	The minimum required annual volume of construction work in any of the last 3 years shall be equivalent to VUV20million. [If the accounting system / financial accounts or reports of the tenderer are in a currency different from VUV, then the exchange rate(s) that shall be used by tenderers for conversion purposes shall be as per the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu on the day of tender close.]
1.4.2 (c)	Qualification criteria	The minimum amount of liquid assets or working capital or credit facility is VUV10million. If the amount is expressed in the accounting system / financial accounts or reports of the Tenderer or any other relevant documents in a currency different from VUV, then the Tenderer shall convert the amounts into VUV using the VUV selling rate of the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu, on the date that is 14 days prior to the closing



Clause Ref.	Heading	Description
11011		date for submission of the Tenders.
1.4.2 (d)	Site Manager	The qualifications of the Site Manager shall be:
(4)		INTV Level 2 certificate in carpentry, construction, construction management or relevant field.
		The minimum experience of the Site Manager in works of an equivalent nature and volume shall be 10 years with a minimum of 5 years as a Manager.
1.4.2(e	Minimum	Minimum equipment required shall be:
)	Equipment required	<ol> <li>Carpentry, concreting and electrician tools</li> <li>construction equipment such as trucks, backhoe/excavator, crane, etc</li> </ol>
1.4.2(f)	Other qualification Criteria	<ol> <li>The other qualification criteria to be applied will be:</li> <li>Have a minimum of ten (10) years of general construction experience</li> <li>Have no previous history of terminations, or breach of contract</li> <li>Have no previous history of non-performance, or poor past performances in terms of quality control, or safety or timely execution of Services</li> <li>Demonstrate to have the equipment required for performing the works</li> <li>Provide a copy of the company Tax Clearance Certificate:         <ul> <li>Contracts with a value of VT 10 million and above cannot be awarded to a supplier that does not have a valid Tax Clearance Certificate;</li> </ul> </li> </ol>
1.4.2	Documentation to demonstrate that qualifying criteria are met	As per Tender Submission schedule 1.9.
1.6.1	Pre-Tender/ Site Meeting	A Pre-Tender/Site Meeting will held at 10am 17 March 2020 in PWD Conference Room, Nasituan Building, Rue De Paris, Port Vila.
1.6.2	Contact Person for clarifications	The Contact person appointed by the Employer is: Judicael Mlonturala Principal Architect Public Works Department PMB 9044 Port Vila Vanuatu Tel: 22888 Email: jmloturala@vanuatu.gov.vu
1.7.1	Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Activities	Schedule of Activities
1.7.2	Currency	VUV (Vatu)
1.7.3	Taxes and	As per Government Tax Laws and Regulations



Clause Ref.	Heading	Description
	Duties	
1.8	Subcontracting	Subcontractors are required to fill in TRS 2 and provide with the tender the Documents proving the qualifications and experience of the personnel undertaking the sub-contracting works (Attach CV for the Nominee).
1.9	Variation in Quantities	Up to 20%
1.10.	Tender Security	No Tender Security required
1.11	Marking of Tender	All Tenders to be marked as follows:  CONFIDENTIAL: 261/20/WK/RFT/EF/SH/BU/VIF/PWD
		Works on Grandstand Seating at Independence Park Port Vila - in Preparation for the 40th Anniversary of Independence Celebrations in July 2020
		The Secretary Central Tenders Board Office Ministry of Finance and Economic Management PMB 9058 Top Floor S.I.P Building Rue Pasteur Port Vila
		SUBMISSION DATE & TIME:  10am, 27 March 2020  "Not to be opened before the tender opening session"
1.15.	Performance Security	No Performance Security is required.
1.16.1	Debriefing of unsuccessful tenderers	As per GCT
1.17.1 &1.17. 3	Signing of the Contract	As per GCT

#### SECTION 3 - EMPLOYER'S TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

### **SCHEDULE OF WORKS**

#### Introduction

On 30 July 2020 The Republic of Vanuatu will celebrate its 40<sup>th</sup> anniversary of Independence. The focus for the celebrations will be the Independence Park in central Port Vila where the initial Independence signatories and celebrations occurred on 30 July 1980. The Independence Park precinct will also feature as part of the 51st Pacific Islands Forum (PIF) meeting which will take place 4<sup>th</sup> – 7<sup>th</sup> August 2020

These celebrations will bring many thousands of people (dignitaries, attendees and the general public) into the Independence Park precinct. The current seating facilities at the park are in poor condition and do not provide sufficient seating for the planned events. The objective of this tender / contract is to:

- 1. Undertake repairs to the existing grandstand seating structure including replacement of rusted/corroded footings, replacement of rotted and damaged timber and connections and replacement of roof sheeting.
- 2. Construction of two new grandstand seating wings to the existing grandstand. The new structures are to match the existing in layout and materials construction.
- 3. Materials supply and construction of temporary grandstand seating to the northern, southern and western sides of independence park to increase seating capacity by 2,000 seats.

# **Project Location & Site Layout**

The project is located at Independence Park Port Vila. The site location and locations of works are shown in Attachment 1.

# **Site Visit**

The tenderer is to undertake a site visit to familiarise themselves with the site layout, dimensions and details required to complete the works. Site photographs are included in Attachment 2.

# **Scope Of Work**

The scope of work for this Tender/Contract is defined in the following table. The Scope of Work is to be read in conjunction with the Drawings, the General Technical Specification and other documents that define the project works.

Serial	Item	Scope of Work Activities
1	Mobilisation / Establishment	<ul> <li>A. Undertake a project start-up meeting with Project Manager.     Allow for site visit with Project Manager prior to mobilisation to site to confirm site measure and project pre-start meeting.</li> <li>B. Movement of all personnel, equipment and materials to site.</li> <li>C. Set up site office and tool shed on site, maximum of 3.5m X 3.5m.</li> <li>D. Provide temporary facilities on site for the proper disposing of construction waste.</li> <li>E. Provide physical security to the construction site.</li> <li>F. Establish temporary supply of Water &amp; Electricity to the site.</li> <li>G. Establish temporary resource yard for materials storage.</li> <li>H. Install a project signboard at the entry to the site. The sign is to</li> </ul>
		be of dimensions 1m x 1.5m,have steel posts and frame and

2	Project / Contract Management & Work Health & Safety and Environmental Management	be of professional (ie printed) standard. The layout and inclusions in the signboard will be confirmed at the commencement of the project works.  I. All vegetation and debris within the limits of construction (outside the walls to a distance of 5m), except as designated to remain, shall be cleared, grubbed, removed, and disposed of. All vegetation and objects to remain shall be protected.  J. Undertake site set out and clarify works requirements  A. Manage the project site and coordinate works with Project Manager  B. Conduct fortnightly site meetings with Project Manager  C. Manage the works and compliance with project requirements  D. Develop a Quality Management Plan (QMP) and Inspection and Test Plan (ITP) and submit to Project Manager within 14 days after signing contract for approval  E. Undertake quality management as per the QMP and ITP  F. Undertake project administration including submission of invoices, keeping project records such as a site diary and maintenance of quality  G. Provision of site security for the duration of the project  H. Submit all plans and documents as required under the contract  I. Provide regular project updates to the Employer / Supervisor  J. Develop Site Safety Plan (SSP) and submit to Supervisor prior to commencing works  K. Developan Environmental Management Plan (EMP) and submit to Supervisor prior to commencing works  L. Provide and enforce the use of personal protective equipment for all site staff (minimum requirement: safety vests, boots, gloves and to have for specific tasks: dust masks, eys and ear protection).  M. Establish site safety and environmental controls on site including waste management system, signage, barriers, etc.  N. Maintain a safe work environment on site maintain site work health and safety controls including daily safety meetings /tool-box talks  O. The Contractor is responsible to keep a clean and safe construction area at the end of each work day
3	Insurances	A. Public Liability: 50million vatu     B. Workers Compensation – as required under Vanuatu Law     C. Equipment, vehicle and general insurance
4.1 4.2 4.3	Repair of Existing Grandstand Seating  Northern Wing Central Wing Southern Wing	The objective of the works is to repair the structure to remove all damaged and rotted/corroded components to make like new. Due to the heritage nature of the structure all visual elements are to be retained unless instructed. The details of the existing grandstand are included in Attachment 2 (photos) and Attachment 3 (drawings).  The methodologies for all repair works are to be approved by the Supervisor prior to commencement.
		Price to be lump sum including include all materials supply, earthworks, structure works, equipment, labour, management, temporary works, profit and margin and all government fees and taxes.

Works are to include:

- A. Footings and substructure (structure below seating support beams including columns and footings). Replace all/any footings and substructure are damaged, rusted or corroded:
  - i. Where a connection is rusted just above ground level the steel is to be cut and a new piece to match welded onto the structure
  - ii. If the steel column repair cannot be re-attached to the concrete footing, the existing footing is to be removed and new footing constructed. General footing dimensions 1cubic metre, refer to drawings. All concrete to be 25MPa with cover of 50mm.
  - iii. In the Central Wing the timber post seats/anchors are to match existing and have a minimum thickness of 4mm steel and 16mm dia bolts
  - iv. Structural members to match existing.
  - v. All steel to be galvanised.
  - vi. All welds to be full depth with a good surface finish.
- B. Seating structure. Replace any/all damaged timber and connection bolts:
  - i. All timber sizes to match existing
  - ii. All structural timber to be Structural grade F8 Treated H3.2 Pine and/or approved quality hardwood
  - iii. All seating to be hardwood to match existing

### C. Roof structure.

- Repair any damaged roof structure including columns, rafters, purlins, nail plates, bolts, bracing and cyclone strapping..
- ii. Roofing (sheeting to be corrugated profile, flashing and ridge capping) shall be 'Colorbond' steel sheet, 0.55 mm BMT (base metal thickness) to approved color complying with AS2728:2013 with a metallic-coated steel substrate conforming to AS1397:2011-G550
- iii. Roofing screws to be type 17 Cyclone roofing screws with 75mm Hexagon Head screws with Rubber & Steel washers. Sheets shall be fixed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions for cyclonic conditions and or Vanuatu 'Home Building Manual' page E-6.
- iv. Install gutters and downpipes between Central Section and Side Wings to stop water splashing onto spectators (approximate gutter length 9m)
- v. Guttering to be uPVC, Marley 'Magnum' or approved equivalent 150mm diameter 1/2 round (in accordance with AS/NZS4176.2) with brackets not exceeding 600mm.
- vi. Downpipes to be 100mm UPVC Pressure Pipe Class B conforming to Australian or NZ Standards. Supply downpipes complete with all fittings.
- vii. All fixings, brackets, bolts and straps to be galvanised D. Finishes and Painting:
  - All rust scale is to be removed by cleaning down thoroughly with a wire brush and coarse / medium grade emery cloth/paper All surfaces (steel, timber) are to be cleaned and scraped of loose paint
  - ii. Previously painted surfaces will be prepared by washing down using a detergent solution such as Sugar Soap or "tricleanium" to remove all dirt and grease prior to minor

	1	
5 5.1 5.2	Construction of new Permanent Grandstand Wings  Northern Wing Southern Wing	iii. Apply two coats of paint to all already painted surfaces. iv. Apply a primer coat and two coats of paint to all bare surfaces: a. Steel: metal gloss enamel b. timber: External acrylic semi-gloss paint 'Weathershield' or approved equivalent  New grandstand wings to be constructed to match existing and as per drawings - included in Attachment 3. A. Price to be lump sum including include all materials supply, earthworks, structure works, equipment, labour, management, temporary works, profit and margin and all government fees and taxes.  B. All concrete to be 25MPa strength C. All steel reinforcement steel to have 50mm concrete cover D. All structural steel to be galvanised E. All connection bolts to be galvanised F. All timber sizes to match existing(unless shown different on drawings G. All structural timber to be Structural grade F8 Treated H3.2 Pine and/or approved quality hardwood H. All seating to be hardwood to match existing I. Roofing (sheeting to be corrugated profile, flashing and ridge capping) shall be 'Colorbond' steel sheet, 0.55 mm BMT (base metal thickness) to approved color complying with AS2728:2013 with a metallic-coated steel substrate conforming to AS1397:2011-G550 J. Roofing screws to be type 17 Cyclone roofing screws with 75mm Hexagon Head screws with Rubber & Steel washers. Sheets shall be fixed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions for cyclonic conditions and or Vanuatu 'Home Building Manual' page E-6. K. Guttering to be uPVC, Marley 'Magnum' or approved equivalent 150mm diameter 1/2 round (in accordance with AS/NZS4176.2) with brackets not exceeding 60mm. L. Downpipes to be 100mm UPVC Pressure Pipe Class B conforming to Australian or NZ Standards. Supply downpipes complete with all fittings. M. All fixings, brackets, bolts and straps to be galvanised N. Finishes and Painting: i. All rust scale is to be removed by cleaning down thoroughly with a wire brush and coarse / medium grade emery cloth/paper All surfaces (steel, timber) are to be cleaned and scraped of loose pain
6	Extension of	The Central VIP Grandstand is to be extended as per drawings to
Ö	EXTENSION OF	The Contract vii Chandeland to to be extended do per drawings to

Central (VIP) Grandstand  The extension is to be constructed as per drawings. The roof structure is to be an extension of the existing with the structure, timber sizes and roofline to match existing. All other provisions as per Item 5. Price to be lump sum including include all materials supply, earthworks, structure works, equipment, labour, management, temporary works, profit and margin and all government fees and taxes.  Supply and Installation of temporary grandstand seating:  A. seating capacity 2,000 seats B. to be set out as per the drawings C. structures to be installed by 20 July 2020 D. structures to be removed no earlier than 10 August 2020 E. structure to comply with Building Code of Vanuatu and relevant AS/NZS structural standards. An engineering certificate is to be provided prior to ordering of the equipment. F. contractor to provide structure and layout drawings to Employer prior to ordering G. seating to include walkways and all associated handrails and safety systems H. seating to be erected without substantial disturbance to the ground surface of Intendance Park. I. The contractor is to erect the temporary seating on site and remove at the completion of activities J. The contractor is to 'operate and maintain' the seating while
Installation of temporary grandstand seating:  A. seating capacity 2,000 seats B. to be set out as per the drawings C. structures to be installed by 20 July 2020 D. structures to be removed no earlier than 10 August 2020 E. structure to comply with Building Code of Vanuatu and relevant AS/NZS structural standards. An engineering certificate is to be provided prior to ordering of the equipment. F. contractor to provide structure and layout drawings to Employer prior to ordering G. seating to include walkways and all associated handrails and safety systems H. seating to be erected without substantial disturbance to the ground surface of Intendance Park. I. The contractor is to erect the temporary seating on site and remove at the completion of activities J. The contractor is to 'operate and maintain' the seating while
erected at Independence Park (up to period of four weeks). This is to include the execution of three daily inspections to check that the seating is safe and undertake any repair required to maintain the structures.  Price to be lump sum including include all materials supply, earthworks, structure works, equipment, labour, management, temporary works, profit and margin and all government fees and
8 Electrical Install electrical systems as per drawings.
A. General:  i. Cable to be 2.5mm three phase electrical cable 'HPM',  'Clipsal' or approved equivalent, compliant with  AS/NZS5000.2  ii. In-ground cables are to be installed in suitable conduit,  buried a minimum of 600mm with cable warning tape  installed 200mm above conduit
iii. Cables are to be run through round conduit, fixed as per manufacturers specifications.  iv. All lights and DGPO fittings to be external grade and weatherproof  v. All lights and fittings/fixtures to be 'HPM, 'Clipsal' or approved equivalent.  vi. All fittings are to be approved prior to purchase.  vii. All contract works are to be carried out by a licensed and qualified electrician.  viii. All electrical works are to be tested and commissioned as part of the works  9 Demobilisation  A. Finish all works to a high standard including defect rectification

		Clear up all rubbish from disposal site.	m site and remove to an approved waste
		Remove all equipment, placed on site for the ex	tools, and any other structures that was xecution of the works.
		Undertake final inspect	ion with Project Manager for approval to PWD/MoYS.
10	Contingency	above for use to cover identified by either the 0 must be approved by the	of the Tenders bid for all items listed all variations and additional works as Contractor or Employer. Expenditure ne Employer. The contingency is not a payment amount for the works.

# **Drawings**

The project drawings are included in Attachment 3 and 4. The works are to be executed as per the drawings. If there are any issues with the drawings, discrepancies or confusion, the Project Manager is to be contacted as soon as possible.

#### Standards of Work

All works are to comply with the Building Code of Vanuatu, the Vanuatu Home Building Manual and relevant Australian and New Zealand standards.

# **Quality Management**

The project works are to be carried out to a high quality. Quality is primarily the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR and must be managed on a daily basis. The Contractor is to submit an Inspection and Test Plan (ITP) for the project within two weeks of signing the contract. The ITP is to be approved by the Project Manager prior to the commencement of site works. The ITP is to include contractor checks, client checks, signoffs and hold points. An example ITP is included in Attachment 5 and is to be modified to suit the works. Defects inspections are to commence at least two weeks prior to the programmed handover date.

# **Project Administration**

**Insurance.** The Contractor is to have insurance prior to commencing works including:

- General liability
- Workers compensation
- General insurance for vehicles and equipment.
- If the contractor does not provide evidence of insurance within 14 days the contract may be terminated.

**Pre-Start Meetings.** A prestart meeting is to be held on site prior to the commencement of the project works. The objective of the prestart meeting is to confirm the project outcomes, responsibilities and relationships for the project. Attendees at the meeting are to include representatives the contractor and Project Manager (PWD).

**Project Meetings.** A meeting is to be held on a fortnightly basis during the works between the Contractor and the PWD Project Manager.

**Invoices.** Draft invoices are to be presented to the Project Manager at least one week prior to the end of the month for verification prior to submission of the final invoice.

**Access To Services.** The contractor is to provide electrical power and water for the works.

**Work Hours.** Work hours are generally to be 7:30am to 5pm Monday to Saturday.

**Security.** The contractor is to ensure that the site security is maintained at all times and that there is no theft on the work site.

**Ablutions.** The Contractor is to provide ablution facilities for site personnel.

Behaviour. All of the contractor's staff are to act in a professional manner at all times.

# **Work Health and Safety**

The Contractor is to ensure that all personnel involved in the works, visitors to the works site and people around (and adjacent to) the work site are kept safe. The Contractor is to provide to the Project Manager with a Site Safety Plan. Measures to manage Work Health and Safety (WHS) are to include:

- **PPE**. Workers are to have personal protective equipment (PPE) appropriate to their tasks including (but not limited to) hearing protection (when operating noisy equipment), safety glasses (mechanical tool operation), gloves, boots and hard hats (when working below other works, and when construction equipment is operating).
- **High Visibility Clothing**: Site personnel are to wear high visibility vests on site.
- Vehicle Use. Vehicles in and around the construction site are to be registered and operated by licenced drivers in a safe manner
- **Electricity.** Any work that involves the use of electricity, including temporary power during works, is to be carried out be a suitably trained and certified electrician.
- **Signage.** The WHS measures and warnings are to be well signposted around the site.
- Access. The PWD will retain ownership of the site and the contractor is to manage access for the construction activities. The contractor is not to block or disrupt access to the site by PWD staff.
- **Noise.** Noise is to be kept to a minimum. Noisy activities are to be conducted between the hours of 9am to 4pm.
- Delineation of the work site. The contractor is delineate the worksite and control
  access onto the site.
- **Drugs and Alcohol.** No smoking, alcohol consumption or consumption of any other drugs is permitted by the contractor or staff whist on site.

#### **Environmental**

Environmental measures for the project are to include:

- All waste is to be removed from site and disposed of as per council requirements.
- No waste is to be burnt on site
- Dust is to be managed and kept to a minimum
- Noise is to be kept to a minimum

# **Handover & Completion**

Upon reaching completion of the project works the contractor is to inform the Project Manager. A joint inspection involving the Project Manager and contractor's representative will be carried out to confirm any outstanding works and/or defects. If the project works comply with the contract drawings, documentation and specification then a Certificate of Completion will be issued. The issue of the Certificate the contractual conditions will be enacted

regarding return of guarantees and commencement of Defect Liability Periods and Warranties.

# **Attachment 1: Site Location and Layout**



# **Attachment 2: Site Photographs**

The following photos provide examples of repairs required to the existing grandstand seating



Photo 1: showing damage to end support of seating



Photo 2: view along northern grandstand – damage to bottom



Photo 3: damage to seating structure – northern side



Photo 4: side view of northern grandstand



Photo 5: fixing with concrete footing is damaged



Photo 6: view of rear of northern grandstand



Photo 7: view of northern grandstand footings



Photo 8: example of rotted timber seating supported



Photo 9: example of damaged timber purlin



Photo 10: central grandstand ridge beam rotted (at end)



Photo 11: example of steel column rusted at ground level – will have to be cut out and new steel attached/installed

# **Attachment 3: Drawings**

Drawing No.	Title
A0.00	Title Page
SA.01	Proposed Site Plan
A1.01	VIP Extension Plan (central)
A1.02	Typical Grandstand Wings Extension Plan
A3.01	VIP Typical Cross Section
A3.02	VIP Typical Cross section
A3.03	Typical Cross Section B
A4.01	Typical Stairs Detail
A5.01	VIP Roof Plan
A5.02	Grandstand Wings Roof Plan
S1.01	Footing Plan
S1.02	Footing & Slab Details
S1.03	Footing Detail
S2.01	Roof Framing Plan
S2.02	End Bracing Elevation
S2.03	Roof Fixing Details
E0.1	Electrical Plan

**Drawing List** 

# **SECTION 4 - TENDER RESPONSE SCHEDULES**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

# Schedule

- 1 Tender Submission Form
- 2 Eligibility and Qualification Information

# RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR TENDER WORKS

[Tenderer to enter name of Government of Vanuatu Procuring Entity (the "Employer")]

RFT NUMBER: [Tenderer to enter tender number, as per

**Invitation to Tender**]

**DESCRIPTION:** [Tenderer to enter brief description of

requirements, as per Invitation to Tender]

**EMPLOYER:** [Tenderer to enter name of Employer, as per

**Invitation to Tender**]

**SUBMISSION** [Tenderer to enter submission address, as per

ADDRESS: Invitation to Tender

**SUBMISSION** [Tenderer to enter date and time, as per Letter

DATE & TIME: of Invitation to Tender]

# TENDER RESPONSE SCHEDULE 1 TENDER SUBMISSION FORM

[To be completed on Tenderer's letterhead]

The completed Tender form and attachments together will comprise the Tenderer's offer

To:

We agree to be bound by the <b>General Conditions of Tender, General Conditions of Contract, Special Conditions of Contract, Special Conditions</b> offer to perform the Works, in conformity with the Faccordance with the Technical Specifications including a Activities, for a Total tender price of:	ditions of Contr Request for Ter	act, and we hereby nder (RFT) and in
	CURRENCY & AMOUNT	
[Total tender price and currency in words]	[Total tender price in figures]	
This amount is  Exclusive of VAT and duties  Inclusive of VAT and duties		
We confirm receipt of the Addenda and Variations to the I	nvitation to Tend	ler listed below:
Addendum	Dated	Date Received

Our Tender shall be valid for the period of time specified in the RFT, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. If our Tender is accepted, we commit to obtaining a Performance Security in accordance with the RFT for the due performance of the Contract. Furthermore we warrant that we comply with all the eligibility criteria specified in the RFT.

We have no conflict of interest, and our firm, its affiliates and subsidiaries have not been declared ineligible under the laws of the Republic of VANUATU or in accordance with the RFT.

# We further warrant that:

- (i) We are free from insolvency, bankruptcy or similar status;
- (ii) We have the legal capacity to enter into contract;
- (iii) We are current with payment of taxes;
- (iv) We and any director, officer, manager or supervisor of ours has not, within a period of three years preceding the date of issuance of the invitation to tender, been convicted of any criminal offence, whether in VANUATU or elsewhere:
  - a. Relating to professional conduct
  - b. Relating to the making of false statements or misrepresentations as to his eligibility or qualifications to enter into a procurement contract;
  - c. Involving dishonesty;
  - d. Under anti-corruption legislation;
- (v) We have not been suspended or disbarred by administrative or judicial proceedings from participating in procurements, whether in Vanuatu or elsewhere.

We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated Tender or any other Tender that you may receive.

Signed:	
Name:	
Title/Position:	
Authorised for a	nd on behalf of Contractor
Address:	

# **SCHEDULE 1.1: SCHEDULUE OF ACTIVITIES**

# PREAMBLE TO THE SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

- 1. The Schedule of Activities shall be read in conjunction with the General Conditions of Tendering, Special Conditions of Tendering, General Conditions of Contract, Special Conditions of Contract, Technical Specifications and Drawings.
- 2. The Tenderer shall provide a tender in accordance with the format of the Schedule of Activities.
- 3. Payment for all of the Works will be the tendered Lump Sum either exclusive or inclusive of VAT and duties (specify as required). The payment of the Lump Sum will be spread over the period of implementation. It shall be calculated on the basis of the percentage of implemented Works at the time of the Interim Certificate.
- 4. A breakdown of the Works is provided in the Schedule of Activities. This breakdown of the tendered Lump Sum over the major activities of the Contract constitutes the means by which the amount payable for the Works is apportioned for Interim Payments.
- 5. This is the extent of the purpose of the Schedule of Activities. It is not to be regarded or construed as placing or constituting any limit on the Contractor's obligations to provide all the Works described in the contract documentation against the tendered Lump Sum.
- 6. The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the Lump Sum, and where no item is provided in the Schedule of Activities, the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among prices entered for the related items of Work.
- 7. Provisional Sums included and so designated in the Schedule of Activities shall be expended in whole or in part at the direction and discretion of the Employer in accordance with the Conditions of Contract.
- 8. A Contingency Sum of 10% is included in the Schedule of Activities for use by the Employer to cover such contingencies as commissioning additional Works or carrying out Variations. When commissioning additional works or carrying out variations the value of these shall be calculated using the quoted unit prices. In the event that the contingency is not used or only partially used the sum remaining is to be deducted from the overall Contract Price.
- 9. In the case of Arithmetic Errors, the Lump Sum will govern. The sums entered for the individual items in the Schedule of Activities will be adjusted by the Employer to accord with the Lump Sum tendered.

Item	Description	Unit	Amount (Vatu)
1	Mobilisation / Establishment	Lump Sum	
2	Project / Contract and Work Health and Environmental Management	Lump Sum	
3	Insurances	Lump Sum	
4.1	Repair of existing grandstand seating – Northern Wing	Lump Sum	
4.2	Repair of existing grandstand seating – Central Wing		
4.3	Repair of existing grandstand seating – Southern Wing		
5.1	Construction of new grandstand – Northern Wing		
5.2	Construction of new permanent grandstand – Southern Wing		
6	Extension of Central (VIP) Grandstand		
7	Supply, install and remove (after the celebrations) temporary grandstand seating		
8	Electrical works		
9	Demobilisation		
10	Sub-Total		
11	Principals Contingency – 10% Lump Sum		
12	Total Contract Lump Sum	Lump Sum	

This amount is  Exclusive of VAT and duties  Inclusive of VAT and duties	
Signed: Name:	
Title/Position: Authorised for and on behalf of Contractor Address:	or:

# TENDER RESPONSE SCHEDULE 2 ELIGIBILITY AND QUALIFICATION INFORMATION

[The Tenderer must complete this schedule and attach any relevant supporting documents]

2.1 Status of Tenderer:					
Tenderer's Legal Name:					
Country of Registration:					
Address in Country of					
Registration:					
Year of Registration;					
Business Certificate Numb	er				
VAT Registration Number	(if				
applicable)					
Registration No. in Vanuat					
2.2 Annual turnover	of Work				
Year					(UV or equivalent e exchange rates]
Average Annual Construct	ion				
Turnover for these 3 years					
Current Commitments					
2.3 Balance Sheet Inf	ormation	and Income S	State	ment for the p	ast financial year
(or last 3 financial years					
- adjust table below if or					. ,
Information from Balance Sheet					
Amounts in VUV Equivalent [EMPLOYER to enter applicable exchange rates]				change rates]	
Years	[Er	nter year]	[1	Enter year]	[Enter year]
Total Assets					
Total Liabilities					
Net Worth					
Current Assets					
Current Liabilities					
	Informa	tion from incom	e sta	tement	
Amounts in VUV Equ	iivalent [E	EMPLOYER to	enter	applicable ex	change rates]
Total Revenues	[Er	nter year]	[1	Enter year]	[Enter year]
Profits before Tax					
Profits after Tax					
2.4 Access to financia	al resour	ces			
in ' Source of financing [EMF		Total amount VUV equivalent PLOYER to ente cable exchang rates]		taking int con Amount ir [EMPLO	ually available after o account other nmitments VUV equivalent OYER to enter exchange rates]

2.5 Works of a similar nature and volume over the past 3 years (3 examples)				
Contract No 1 of 3				
Contract Identification:				
Award Date:				
Completion Date:				
Role in Contract:	[State Contract	tor, or Subco	ontractor)	
Brief Description of Work				
undertaken				
Total Contract Amount in VUV				
equivalent [EMPLOYER to enter				
applicable exchange rate]				
If partner in a JV or subcontractor,	Percentage			
specify participation of total	of Total:			
contract amount:				
Employer's Name				
Address				
Telephone Number				
Fax Number				
E-mail address Contract No 2 of 3				
Contract No 2 of 3  Contract Identification:				
Award Date:				
Completion Date:				
Role in Contract:	[State Contrac	tor or Subco	ontractor)	
Brief Description of Work	Totale Contrac	tor, or Gabot	nitia de la	
undertaken				
Total Contract Amount in VUV			Amount	
equivalent [EMPLOYER to enter				
applicable exchange rates]				
If partner in a JV or subcontractor,	Percentage of	Total		
specify participation of total				
contract amount:				
Employer's Name				
Address				
Telephone Number				
Fax Number				
E-mail address				
Contract No 3 of 3	Т			
Contract Identification:				
Award Date:				
Completion Date:	Ctota Cantraa	ton on Cubos	antro eta vi	
Role in Contract:	State Contrac	tor, or Subco	ontractor)	
Brief Description of Work undertaken				
Total Contract Amount in VUV			Amount	
equivalent [EMPLOYER to enter			Amount	
applicable exchange rates]				
If partner in a JV or subcontractor,	Percentage of	Total		
specify participation of total	. Groomago or	. 5.0.		
contract amount:				
Employer's Name			1	
Address				
Telephone Number				
Fax Number				
E-mail address				

2.6 Proposed Site Manager and other Key Staff

Name	Role/Responsibility	Qualifications & General experience in Construction (years)	Experience in proposed post (years)
	Site Manager		
[Complete and attach CV for the nominee(s)]			

2.7 Contractor's proposed key Plant / Equipment

Description of	Age (years)	Owned, leased or to be purchased
equipment	Condition (new,	No of units available and location
Brand, model	good, poor)	

# 2.8 Method Statement and Works Programme

Proposed Work Method Statement and Construction Programme, giving descriptions, drawings, charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the Employer's Technical Specifications to be attached to this TRS.

# 2.9 Documentation attached:

2.9 Documentation attached.	,
Attached with this TRS are the Originals of the following	Туре
documents:	
Power of Attorney for the signatory to sign the Tender	Original
Tender Security	Original
Proposed Work Method Statement and Construction Programme	Original
Completed Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Activities	Original
Completed Schedules	Original
Enclosed with this TRS are copies of the following documents:	
Business Registration Certificate in the Tenderer's country of	Сору
registration	
Latest Income Tax Clearance Certificate (if applicable – refer SCT)	Сору
In case of government owned entity in Vanuatu, documents	Сору
establishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with	
commercial law.	
Details of name, address, contact data of banks that may provide	Сору
references if contacted by the Employer.	
Financial statement (balance sheet including all related notes, and	Сору
income statements) for the past 3 financial years complying with the	
following conditions:	
The financial statement must reflect the financial situation of	

the Tenderer and not sister or parent companies;	
The financial statement must be complete, including all notes	
to the financial statement	
The financial statement must correspond to the 3 financial years	
already completed and audited (no statements for partial periods shall	
be requested or accepted).	
Documents proving access to financial resources	Сору
Documents proving the qualifications and experience of the Site	
Manager	
Any other documents requested by this RFT	Сору

# 2.10 Safety and Environmental Management

Company demonstrates that it can manage Safety on the project site in compliance with Government of Vanuatu Work Health and Safety regulations. Company has a Safety Policy and Management Plan – provide evidence.

Company demonstrates that it can undertake environmental management on the project site in compliance with Government of Vanuatu Work Environmental legislation and regulations – provide evidence (eg Environmental Plan).

# 2.11 VAT Compliance

While this RFT is VAT exempt the Government of Vanuatu is concerned of the number of companies who are not paying their VAT. Tenderers are to submit a letter from the Customs Office to verify that they are VAT compliant and up to date with the VAT payments.

Signed:
Name:
Title/Position:
Authorised for and on behalf of Contractor:
Address:

# **SECTION 5 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

5.1.	GENERAL PROVISIONS	43
5.2.	OBLIGATIONS OF THE EMPLOYER	44
5.3.	OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR	45
5.4.	PERFORMANCE OF THE WORKS	46
5.5.	INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	47
5.6.	MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP	48
5.7.	COMPLETION AND CERTIFICATES	49
5.8.	VARIATION ORDERS	50
5.9.	TERMS OF PAYMENT	50
5.10.	PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION	52
5.11.	PERFORMANCE SECURITY	52
5.12.	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	52
5.13.	TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION	52
5.14.	DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENT	53
5.15.	FORCE MAJEURE	54
5.16.	INTEGRITY/ PROBITY	54

#### **SECTION 5 - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

#### 5.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

- (1) The Employer is the Government of Vanuatu Procuring Entity stated in the Contract, represented by the person named in the 'Special Conditions of Contract' (SCC).
- (2) The Contractor is the entity stated in the Contract Agreement, represented by the person named in the **SCC**.
- (3) The Contract Documents listed in the Contract Agreement represent the entire and integrated Contract between the Employer and the Contractor. The Contract is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of the Republic of Vanuatu, and the ruling language of the Contract is English.
- (4) All prior negotiations, representations and agreements, both oral and written, are superseded by the Contract. All correspondence and documents relating to the Contract between the parties and their representatives shall be in English.
- (5) Neither the Employer nor the Contractor shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under the Contract, except with the prior written consent of the other party.
- (6) In these Conditions of Contract, unless the context otherwise requires:

**Bill of Quantities** means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Tender:

**Construction Supervisor** means the person named in the **SCC** who, on behalf of the Employer, supervises the Construction and certifies the completion of the Works

**Contingency Sum** means a sum specified by the Employer to meet unforeseeable costs likely to be incurred during the contract;

**Contract** means the signed Contract Agreement, and the documentation specified therein, as entered into between the Employer and the Contractor for the provision of the Works;

**Contractor** means the person or organisation stated in the Contract Agreement whose Tender to provide the Works and Services has been accepted by the Employer;

**Contract Price** means the price stated in the Contract;

**Date for Commencement** means the date by which the Contractor shall commence the execution of the Works as defined in the **SCC**;

**Date for Completion** means the date by which the Works are expected be completed as defined in the **SCC**;

Days mean calendar days;

**Day works** are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant;

**Defect** is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract;

**Defects Liability Certificate** is the certificate issued by the Construction Supervisor upon verification of the completion of notified defects;

**Defects Liability Period** means the period stated in the **SCC** following the issuance of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate, during which the Contractor shall rectify any defects arising as a result of the performance of the Works;

**Drawings** include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Construction Supervisor for the execution of the Contract;

**Employer** means the Government of Vanuatu procuring entity stated in the Contract Agreement;

**Equipment** is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works;

**Force Majeure** means an event or situation beyond the control of either party that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of either party. Such events may include, but not be limited to, wars or revolutions, natural

disasters (such as earthquakes, tsunamis, fires, floods etc.), epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargo;

**In writing** means communicated in written form (e.g. by letter, e-mail or fax);

Months mean calendar months;

**Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate** means the Certificate issued by the Construction Supervisor on acceptance of the works by the Employer and its date of issue is the date from which the Defects Liability Period commences;

**Provisional Sum** means a sum specified by the Employer and included in the contract for the execution of any part of the Works, which sum may be used in whole, or in part, or may not be used at all, on the instructions of the Employer;

**Schedule of Activities** means a breakdown of the Works to be provided and includes the lump sum price of the Works;

Site means the place of performance of the Works as specified in the Contract;

**Site Manager** means the person appointed by the Contractor to act as the Contractor's representative on Site during the performance of the Works;

**Specifications** means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the Construction Supervisor;

**Subcontractor** means any person or organisation that supplies goods, materials or services to the Contractor:

**Variation** is an instruction given by the Employer which varies the Contract;

**Works** means what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install and hand over to the Employer.

Clause headings shall not be used in the interpretation of these Conditions.

Words in the singular also include the plural and vice versa when the context so requires.

Words indicating a gender include either gender.

#### 5.2 OBLIGATIONS OF THE EMPLOYER

#### 5.2.1 Access to the Site and Payments

- 1) The Employer will arrange to place the site and access thereto at the disposal of the Contractor as provided for under the Contract.
- 2) The Employer shall pay to the Contractor sums due under the Contract.

#### 5.2.2 Construction Supervisor

- (1) The Employer shall appoint a Construction Supervisor, as named in the **SCC**, for the Works and shall provide written notice to the Contractor of such an appointment. The Employer may from time to time replace the Construction Supervisor by giving written notice to the Contractor of such replacement.
- (2) The duties and powers of the Construction Supervisor are to:
  - (a) Issue written instructions which the Contractor shall carry out without delay, notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 0. Such instructions may include, but are not limited to, those which in the opinion of the Construction Supervisor may be necessary to resolve ambiguities or discrepancies in the various documents forming the Contract. If instructions are given orally they shall within 7 days be confirmed in writing;
  - (b) Issue instructions as to the expenditure of the provisional sum, if any. The Construction Supervisor on a fair and reasonable basis shall value any costs arising out of such instruction;
  - (c) Supply details of lines, levels and/or reference points to enable the Contractor to set out the works;
  - (d) Order the removal or the rectification of defects: and/or
  - (e) Instruct the Contractor to delay the start of or the progress of any activity on the Works Programme (refer to Clause 5.4.4). Any claims or costs that may arise out of such an instruction shall be forwarded by the Contractor to the Construction Supervisor and shall include therein details and supporting documentary evidence. The claim(s) shall be submitted within 7 days from the date of the instruction. The Construction Supervisor shall evaluate and determine the appropriate form of the

- compensation for the delay, so as to advise the Contractor within 14 days and forward a copy of the advice to the Employer. However, the Construction Supervisor shall prior to the issue of the instructions under this Clause obtain approval from the Employer.
- (f) Any other duties and powers assigned to the Construction Supervisor, in addition to the above, are stated in the **SCC**.
- (3) The Construction Supervisor may appoint a Representative to supervise the Contract and delegate any or all of the duties and powers of the Construction Supervisor to that Representative. If such an appointment is made the Construction Supervisor shall provide written notice to the Contractor and the Employer and specify the duties and powers that are delegated to the Construction Supervisor's Representative.
- (4) The Construction Supervisor may require the instant dismissal from the Works of any agent, foreman or other person employed on the Works, or in connection with the Works, whether employed by the Contractor or not, where in the reasonable view of the Construction Supervisor that person breached any regulation or obligation in connection with the Works or applicable at the Site, or in connection with other persons involved with the works, or is negligent, or incompetent, or behaves in any other way inappropriate. The Contractor shall immediately comply with, or ensure immediate compliance with, such requirement for dismissal, and the Contractor shall not again employ a person so dismissed on or in connection with the Works.

#### 5.3 OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR

# 5.3.1 General Obligations

- (1) The Works to be performed shall be as specified in the Drawings and Specifications and the Contractor with due diligence and in a good workmanlike manner shall carry out and complete the Works to the reasonable satisfaction of the Construction Supervisor.
- (2) The Contractor shall check and verify dimensions on Drawings on Site before proceeding with the Works, and shall bring any ambiguities in the Drawings and Specifications to the attention of the Construction Supervisor for clarification.
- (3) The Contractor shall comply with all notices required by statute, statutory instrument, rule, order, regulation, or by-law applicable to the Works and shall pay all fees and charges in connection therewith.
- (4) The Contractor shall at all times keep upon the Site a Site Manager acceptable to the Construction Supervisor, to supervise and direct the performance of the Works.
- (5) The Contractor shall allow the Construction Supervisor and any person authorised by the Construction Supervisor access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.
- (6) The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Construction Supervisor which comply with the applicable laws of the Republic of Vanuatu.
- (7) The Contractor is responsible for acts and omissions of all employees of the Contractor and other persons performing portions of the Work under contract with the Contractor.
- (8) The Contractor shall not subcontract any part of the Works without the written consent of the Construction Supervisor. If requested, the Construction Supervisor shall not unreasonably withhold such consent.

#### 5.3.2 Sufficiency of Tender Prices

(1) The Contractor shall be deemed to have inspected and examined the site and its surroundings and to have satisfied himself as to the nature of the ground and the subsoil

before submitting his tender. He shall also be deemed to have taken into account the form and nature of the site, the extent and nature of the work and materials necessary for the completion of the works, the means of communication with and access to the site, the accommodation he may require and in general to have obtained for himself all necessary information as to the risks, contingencies and any other circumstances influencing or affecting his tender.

- (2) The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied himself before submitting his tender as to the correctness and sufficiency of the tender and of the rates and prices stated in the Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Activities, which shall cover all his obligations under the contract.
- (3) Since the Contractor is deemed to have determined his prices on the basis of his own calculations, operations and estimates, he shall, at no additional charge, carry out any work that is the subject of any item whatsoever in his tender for which he indicates neither a unit price nor a lump sum.

# 5.3.3 Safety, Health and Welfare and Environment

(1) The Contractor shall be responsible for all activities on the Site and shall comply with all relevant provisions of the laws of the Republic of Vanuatu.

# 5.3.4 Copyright

(1) The intellectual property and copyright (IP) in all drawings, documents and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Employer by the Contractor shall remain vested in the Contractor, or, if they are furnished to the Employer directly or through the Contractor by any third party, including Suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party save insofar as the Contractor shall grant to the Employer a world-wide, non-exclusive, irrevocable and royalty-free licence to use the IP to give effect to the provisions of this agreement.

#### 5.4 PERFORMANCE OF THE WORKS

#### 5.4.1 Site of the Works, Date for Commencement and Completion

- (1) The Site of the Works, Expected Site Possession Date, Date for Commencement and Date for Completion are provided in the **SCC**, unless the dates are otherwise agreed in writing with the Construction Supervisor. However, the Contractor cannot take possession of the Site until the Contractor has provided copies of the relevant Insurance policies to the Construction Supervisor.
- (2) If it becomes apparent that the Works will not be completed within the Time for Completion for reasons beyond the control and without fault of the Contractor, the Contractor shall so notify the Construction Supervisor who shall extend the Time for Completion by a period reasonably supported by detailed particulars provided by the Contractor.
- (3) Every delay in the completion of the Works that is not caused by the Contractor shall not constitute non-compliance with this Contract by the Contractor.

#### 5.4.2 Adverse Weather Conditions

(1) In the event that unforeseeable adverse weather conditions affect the Contractual Works Programme, the Contractor may require an extension of time and, in such an event, shall notify the Construction Supervisor who shall extend the Date for Completion by a period determined by him/her without additional costs accruing to the Contract, provided the Contractor has supportive documentary evidence to substantiate that the inclement weather conditions prevailing at the time are worse than the average conditions normally prevailing in that locality and are, therefore, deemed to be unforeseeable.

#### 5.4.3 Working Hours

(1) The working hours shall be 07:30 Hours to 16:30 Hours with a break of one (1) hour around mid-day for weekdays and 07:30 Hours to 12:00 Hours (noon) on Saturdays. No work shall be carried out outside these working hours unless a written request has been submitted

and approval given in writing by the Construction Supervisor, whose consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

# 5.4.4 Contractual Works Programme and Communications

- (1) Within 14 days of signing the contract the Contractor shall update the proposed Work Programme, including a revised methods statement (as included in the tender), and this will constitute the first Contractual Works Programme
- (2) The Contractual Works Programme shall be revised, as required by the Construction Supervisor, showing the modifications to such programme necessary to ensure completion of the Works within the Time for Completion.
- (3) Communications between parties that are referred to in these Conditions shall be effective only when made in writing, and only when having been delivered and acknowledged in writing between one party and the other.

#### 5.4.5 Contractor's Risks

(1) From the Time of Commencement until the Time of Completion the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the Works, materials and equipment) which are not the Employer Risks are Contractor's Risks.

#### 5.4.6 Protection of Works and Property

- (1) The Contractor shall, throughout the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, take reasonable precautions for safety and protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
  - (a) Employees of the work site and other persons who may be affected;
  - (b) The Works and materials to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under the care, custody or control of the Contractor or any sub-contractor of the Contractor;
  - (c) Other property at or adjacent to the site including but not limited to trees, shrubs, lawns, walkways, pavement, roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of the construction.
- (2) Any damage caused to existing buildings, structures, services, roads and other site features shall be made good at the sole expense of the Contractor.

#### 5.5 INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

#### 5.5.1 Indemnification

- (1) The Contractor shall keep the Employer and employees or agents of the Employer indemnified against any legal liability, loss, claim, action or proceeding for personal injury to or death of any person or damage to any property arising from the carrying out of the Works (except loss or damage caused by any negligent act, omission or default of the Employer or employees or agents of the Employer) and from any costs and expenses that may be incurred in connection with any such loss, claim, action or proceeding.
- (2) The Contractor shall indemnify the Employer at all times against any compensation paid or any action, claim, demand or expense arising from or incurred by reason of the existence of any patent, design, trademark or copyright or other protected right in respect of any machine, plant, work material or thing, system or method of using, fixing, working or arrangement, used or fixed or supplied by the Contractor in connection with carrying out the Works.

#### 5.5.2 Insurances

(1) The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, such insurances as are necessary to cover the liability of the Contractor and subcontractor(s) in respect of (a) personal injuries or deaths and damage to real or personal property arising out of or in the course of the carryout of the Works; (b) all unfixed materials and goods intended for the Works, delivered to, or placed on or adjacent to the Works and intended for the Works,

and for an amount not less than the full Contract value and against all risks or physical loss or damage.

(2) The Contractor shall not cancel, cause to be cancelled, or alter the terms and conditions of any insurance policy covering this Contract without the express permission of the Employer.

#### 5.5.3 Amounts and Evidence of Cover

- (1) Such indemnification and insurances shall be in the type and amounts specified in the **SCC**, shall cover the period from the Date for Commencement to the end of the Defects Liability Period and shall be effected within fourteen (14) days of the date of contract signature, and in terms approved by the Employer.
- (2) Prior to commencement of the Works, the Contractor, and any subcontractor, shall produce such evidence as the Construction Supervisor may reasonably require that the indemnification and insurances referred to in this Clause have been taken out and are in force for the duration required under the Contract.
- (3) If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.

#### 5.6 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

#### 5.6.1 Conforming to Contract

All materials used in the Works and the standards of workmanship shall conform to the provisions of the Contract. In the absence of such provisions, materials and standards of workmanship shall be of a kind that is suitable for their purpose and consistent with the nature and character of the Works. Any material not otherwise specified shall be new and, where applicable, material and workmanship shall be to the satisfaction of the Construction Supervisor. If the Construction Supervisor is of the opinion that any materials or the work or any part thereof, whether fixed or not, is unsatisfactory he may direct its replacement, removal or correction at the Contractor's expense.

#### 5.6.2 Proprietary Items

Unless specifically stated to the contrary, it is not intended to give any preference to the manufacturer or brand mentioned wherever a proprietary item is specified. If the Contractor proposes to use a substitute proprietary item, he must provide full details of the item proposed to the Construction Supervisor for approval and the Construction Supervisor shall decide whether or not the proposed substitute may be used. If approved, the substitution shall be recorded in writing by the Construction Supervisor, and the substitution shall only be used after the Contractor has received such written approval.

#### 5.6.3 Storage of Material

The Contractor's materials and plant shall only be stored in the location approved by the Construction Supervisor. If no storage facilities are available it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide storage facilities.

#### 5.6.4 Access to Works and Materials

- (1) The Construction Supervisor or any other person authorised by him, shall have free and uninterrupted access at all times to the Works and during working hours to any workshop or premises not on the site of the Works where materials may be in preparation or stored for the purpose of the Contract.
- (2) The Contractor, if so required by the Construction Supervisor, shall give the Construction Supervisor all particulars as to the mode and place of manufacture of any of the materials proposed to be used in connection with the Contract and shall facilitate inspection of the materials.

#### 5.6.5 Defects and Tests

- (1) The Construction Supervisor shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Construction Supervisor may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Construction Supervisor considers may have a Defect.
- (2) If the Construction Supervisor instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the cost of testing will be compensated by the Employer to the Contractor.
- (3) The Construction Supervisor shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at the date of the issue of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate, and is defined in the **SCC**. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (4) Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Construction Supervisor's notice. If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Construction Supervisor's notice, the Construction Supervisor will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor will pay this amount.

#### 5.7 COMPLETION AND CERTIFICATES

# 5.7.1 Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate

- (1) When, in the opinion of the Contractor, the whole of the Works have been substantially completed and have satisfactorily passed any tests on completion prescribed by the Contract, he shall request the Construction Supervisor to issue a Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate in the format provided.
  - (a) The Construction Supervisor shall within 14 days of the date of such request, issue to the Contractor, with a copy to the Employer, a Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate, stating the date on which, in his opinion the Works were substantially completed in accordance with the Contract; or
  - (b) The Construction Supervisor shall within 14 days of the date of such request, reject the application, giving reasons and specifying the work to be done in order for a Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate to be issued; or
  - (c) If the Construction Supervisor fails either to issue the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate or to reject the Contractor's request within a period of twenty eight (28) days of the date of such request, and if the Works are substantially complete in accordance with the Contract, the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate shall be deemed to have been issued on the last day of that period.
- (2) Upon the issue of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate 50% of the Retention money shall be certified by the Construction Supervisor for payment by the Employer to the Contractor;
- (3) The Construction Supervisor may, at the request of the Contracting Authority or Contractor and if the natures of the works so permits proceed with partial taking over, provided that the structures, parts of structures or sections of the works are completed and suited to the use as described in the contract. In the cases of partial taking over, the defects liability period for the works taken over shall, unless the SCC provide otherwise, run from the date of such partial taking over.

#### 5.7.2 Defects Liability Certificate

- (1) Any defects which appear within the Defects Liability Period stated in the **SCC** after the date of substantial completion of the Works (as recorded in the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate) shall be made good by the Contractor entirely at his own cost.
- (2) The Defects Liability Certificate shall be issued by the Construction Supervisor once the Defects Liability Period has been completed and all defects that have been notified to the Contractor have been rectified.
- (3) The Contract shall not be considered as completed until a Defects Liability Certificate has been signed and issued by the Construction Supervisor to the Employer, with a copy to the Contractor, stating the date when the Contractor shall have completed his obligations to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects to such work to the satisfaction of the Construction Supervisor.
- (4) Upon issuance of the Defects Liability Certificate and no later than the Final Payment Certificate, the Construction Supervisor shall certify the remaining fifty (50) percent of the Retention money for payment by the Employer to the Contractor.

#### **5.8 VARIATION ORDERS**

- (1) The Construction Supervisor may prepare a Variation Order making changes to the Works, specifications, timing and/or cost of the Contract and submit it to the Employer, with a brief justification for the variation, for approval to issue the Variation Order.
- (2) The Contractor may submit a written proposal to the Construction Supervisor requesting a variation in the Works. The proposal shall include a reasonable estimate of the time and/or cost of the variation, as well as a brief justification for the variation. If the Construction Supervisor agrees to the proposal he shall submit it to the Employer for approval to issue a Variation Order.
- (3) After receiving approval from the Employer, the Construction Supervisor shall issue the Variation Order to the Contractor within 3 days. By signing and returning a copy of the Variation Order the Contractor agrees to the terms and conditions of the Variation Order.
- (4) The Contractor shall, in writing and within 7 days of receiving the Variation Order, notify the Construction Supervisor of any disagreement with the Variation Order. Any disagreement shall be settled in accordance with Clause 5.14.

#### 5.9 TERMS OF PAYMENT

#### **5.9.1** Contract Price

- (1) Unit Costs / Lump Sum charged by the Contractor for the Works performed under the Contract shall not vary from the Unit Costs / Lump Sum offered by the Contractor in its Tender. The total payments to be made against the Contract shall not exceed the Contract Price stated in the Contract Agreement, except for changes made to the Contract as provided for in Clause 5.8.
- (2) The Rates in the Bill of Quantities / Schedule of Activities, shall not be subject to adjustment during the Contract to take into account any change in cost to the Contractor of any plant, equipment, materials, service, labour or any other thing necessary for the completion of the Works.

#### 5.9.2 Provisional Sum

The Contractor shall be entitled only to such amounts in respect of the work to which the Provisional Sum relates as the Employer shall determine.

# 5.9.3 Advance Payment

- (1) If specified in the **SCC**, the Employer will make an advance payment to the Contractor in the percentage stated in the **SCC** against submission of an unconditional Bank Guarantee for the full value of the advance, in the format provided.
- (2) The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting amounts as specified in the **SCC** from payments otherwise due to the Contractor. The total advance payment to be recovered during the period of the Contract.

#### 5.9.4 Interim Payments

- (1) The Contractor shall submit, at the intervals stated in the **SCC**, an Interim Payment Statement to the Construction Supervisor, in the form approved by the Construction Supervisor, showing:
  - (a) The value of the Works executed on the Site, including any materials and goods delivered to the Site for incorporation in the Works, for the period covered by the Statement:
  - (b) Any other sums to which the Contractor considers himself to be entitled under the Contract (if applicable);
  - (c) Less the total of interim progress payments made by the Employer;
  - (d) Less the amount to be deducted for Retention, at the rate stated in Clause 5.9.6;
  - (e) Less the amount, if any, to be recovered from the Contractor due to an advance payment having been made to the Contractor.
- (2) The Construction Supervisor shall satisfy himself that the Works accomplished for the respective period have been completed without defects in pursuance of the Contract, and any statutory Acts regulating construction Works in Vanuatu, and within 7 days shall certify the interim payment which he considers due and payable to the Contractor in respect of the above mentioned items. The Employer shall pay to the Contractor the amount so certified within 30 days of the date of the Payment Certificate issued by the Construction Supervisor. The basis for calculation of payments shall be that specified in the Bill of Quantities / Schedule of Activities.
- (3) When defects are detected in the Works accomplished for the respective period they shall be priced and their cost shall be retained from the amount due for that period. If the defects are not completed by the time of submission of the next Interim Payment Statement the costs shall be retained until the completion of the defects and the issuance of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate.

#### 5.9.5 Final Payment

- (1) Within 30 days of issuance of the Defects Liability Certificate, the Contractor shall submit a Final Payment Statement to the Construction Supervisor, in the form approved by the Construction Supervisor, showing:
  - (a) The value of all the work done in accordance with the Contract;
  - (b) Any further sums which the Contractor considers to be due to him under the Contract (if applicable);
  - (c) Less any sums due to the Employer under the provisions of Clause 5.12 Liquidated Damages;
  - (d) Less the amount to be deducted for Retention, at the rate stated in Clause 5.9.6;
  - (e) Less the total of all interim payments received under the Contract and any sums that might be due from the Contractor to the Employer.

The basis for calculation of the value of the work done shall be that specified in the Bill of Quantities / Schedule of Activities.

(2) Provided the Contractor shall have provided all documents reasonable necessary for the computation of the amount to be certified, the Construction Supervisor shall within 30 days of receiving the Contractor's Final Payment Statement, issue a Final Payment Certificate

certifying the amount due to the Contractor or to the Employer, as the case may be, and such sums shall be a debt payable within 30 days of the date of the Final Payment Certificate.

- (3) In the event that the Contractor fails or neglects to submit a Final Payment Statement, the Construction Supervisor may nevertheless issue a Final Payment Certificate provided he has sufficient information to calculate the value of such Certificate.
- (4) The Employer shall within 30 days from the date of the Final Payment Certificate pay to the Contractor the amount due to the Contractor.
- (5) If on the Final Payment Certificate a payment is due to the Employer the Contractor shall within 30 days from the date of the Final Payment Certificate pay the Employer that amount due.
- (7) The Employer shall not be liable to the Contractor for any matter or thing arising out of or in connection with the Contract or the execution of the Works, unless the Contractor shall have included a claim in respect thereof in his Final Payment Statement.

# 5.9.6 Payment Retention and Release

- (1) In order to take into account any list of outstanding Works at the time of taking over of the Works and the obligation of the Contractor to complete the proper execution of the Works a Payment Retention of 10% shall be deducted from the payments due to the Contractor with respect to each interim payment and the final payment of the Contract.
- (2) 50% of the sum retained shall be paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 30 days following the issue of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate.
- (3) The substitution of the Payment Retention by a Bank guarantee or security bond may be provided by the Contractor on the date of issue of the Practical Completion ("Taking Over") Certificate. The remaining 50% shall be released within 30 days upon the issue of the Final Payment Certificate.

#### 5.10 PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION

- (1) Upon termination of the Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment of the unpaid balance of the value of the Works executed adjusted by the following:
  - (a) Any sums to which the Contractor is entitled under this Clause; and
  - (b) Any sums to which the Employer is entitled.

#### 5.10.1 Taxes and Duties

(1) Refer to the **SCC**.

#### 5.11 PERFORMANCE SECURITY

- (1) The proceeds of the Performance Security provided by the Contractor shall be payable to the Employer as compensation for any loss resulting from the Contractor's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- (2) The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Employer and returned to the Contractor not later than 30 days following the date of Completion of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract, including any defects liability obligations.

#### 5.12 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

(1) Liquidated damages as applicable are as stated in the SCC.

#### 5.13 TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION

#### **5.13.1** Termination for Default

(1) The Employer may, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract or written notice of default sent to the Contractor, terminate the Contract in whole or in part if the Contractor:

- (a) Abandons the works, refuses or fails to comply with a valid instruction of the Employer or fails to proceed expeditiously and without delay: or
- (b) Persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails to supply sufficient properly skilled workers or proper materials; or
- (c) Persistently disregards laws, ordinance, or rules, regulations or orders, of a public authority having jurisdiction; or
- (d) Otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract; or
- (e) Has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract. Termination for Insolvency
- (2) The Employer may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Contractor if the Contractor becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, the Contractor shall be compensated for the Works completed and materials supplied up to the date of termination only, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Employer.

#### **5.13.2** Termination for Convenience

(1) The Employer may, without cause, by written notice order the Contractor to terminate its engagement under the Contract. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall be paid for the Work performed up to the date of termination, provided that any such uncompleted Works were not late or otherwise overdue for completion at the date of termination. The Contractor shall promptly make every reasonable effort to procure cancellation upon terms acceptable to the Employer of all outstanding subcontracts.

#### **5.13.3** Termination by the Contractor

(1) In the event the Employer fails to comply with the requirements under Clause 5.9.3 and 5.9.4 within a period of 30 days after the payments became due, the Contractor may after a further 7 days serve a notice to the Employer to terminate this Contract and any costs shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of Clause 5.9.4.

# 5.13.4 Property

(1) All materials, plant, equipment on the Site, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default.

#### 5.13.5 Suspension of Funding

(1) In the event that funding from which part of the payments to the Contractor are being made is suspended the Employer is obliged to notify the Contractor of such suspension within 7 days of having received advice of the suspension of funding.

#### 5.13.6 Suspension of the Works

(1) In the event that the Works are suspended due to circumstances beyond the control of the Employer or the Contractor, the Employer shall after due consultation with the Contractor, determine any extension of time to which the Contractor is entitled and the amount that shall be added to the Contract Price (if any) under Clause 5.8. The Contractor shall make all reasonable effort to find alternative arrangements for plant that is idle due to the suspension of Works.

# 5.14 DISPUTES AND SETTLEMENT

#### 5.14.1 Negotiated Settlement

(1) The Parties agree that the avoidance or early resolution of disputes is crucial for a smooth execution of the Contract and the success of the assignment. The Parties shall use their best efforts to negotiate all disputes arising out of, or in connection, with this Contract or its interpretation. Failing successful negotiation the courts in Vanuatu will settle any disputes in line with the laws of the Republic of Vanuatu.

#### 5.15 FORCE MAJEURE

#### 5.15.1 No Breach of Contract

(1) The failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as the inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

#### 5.15.2 Extension of Time

(1) Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

# **5.15.3** Payments

(1) During the period of its inability to complete the Works as a result of an event of Force Majeure the Contractor shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Contract and in reactivating the Contract after the end of such period.

#### 5.16 INTEGRITY/ PROBITY

- (1) Neither the Contractor, nor any Representative of the Contractor will engage in fraud, corruption, collusion, coercion and/or obstructive practises in competing for, or in executing the contract. Should the Contractor, or any Representative of the Contractor engage in the above, they could face any, or all, of the following sanctions:
  - (a) Immediate termination of contract (refer Termination and Suspension above);
  - (b) Liability for damages to the Government of Vanuatu and other competing bidders;
  - (c) Debarment (blacklisting) for five years from engaging in any further contract with the Government of Vanuatu; and
  - (d) Public Prosecution under the Penal Code Act.
- (2) The Contractor, or any Representative of the Contractor, shall immediately report to the Police, Public Prosecutor and Chairman of the Public Service Commission any attempt by the Employer, or the Employer's Representative, to demand bribes or gifts in relation to this contract.

# **SECTION 6 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

These Special Conditions (SCC) of Contract supplement and/or amend the General Conditions of Contract. The SCC will be updated and included in the Contract Documents when these are prepared for issue to the successful Tenderer.

GCC Ref.	Heading	Description
5.1 (1)	Employer's	The Employer is represented by:
	Representative	Dick Abel
	·	Principal Architect
		Public Works Department
		Nasiutan Building
		George Pompidou
		Port Vila
		Tel: +678 22888/33460
		Email: dabel@vanuatu.gov.vu
5.1 (2)	Contractor's	The Contractor is represented by:
	Representative	[EMPLOYER to enter name of person]
	·	[EMPLOYER to enter contact address]
		Tel: [EMPLOYER to enter telephone
		number]
		Fax: [EMPLOYER to enter fax number]
		Email: [EMPLOYER to enter e-mail address]
5.1(6)	Construction	The Construction Supervisor appointed by the
5.2.2(1)	Supervisor	Employer to supervise the construction and
		certify completion is:
		Dick Abel
		Principal Architect
		Public Works Department
		Nasiutan Building
		George Pompidou
		Port Vila
		Tel: +678 22888/33460
		Email: dabel@vanuatu.gov.vu
5.1(6)	Date for	24 April 2017
5.4.1(1)	Commencement	
5.1(6)	Date for Completion	21 July 2017
5.4.1(1)		
5.1 (6),	Defects Liability	The Defect Liability Period shall be 6 months
5.6.5 (3)	Period	from the issue of the Practical Completion
& 5.7.2		("Taking Over") Certificate.
(1)		
5.2.2(2)(f)	Other duties and	The other powers and duties assigned to the
	powers assigned to	Construction Supervisor under this contract are
	the Construction	as follows:
<b>-</b> 4 4 4 4 3	Supervisor	[EMPLOYER to describe]
5.4.1 (1)	Site of the Works	The exact location of the Site is:
		Lamenu Sports Facility, Lenakel Township,
F 4 4 (4)	Francisco d'O''	Tanna Island
5.4.1 (1)	Expected Site Possession Date	Seven days after signing contract
5.5.3 (1)	Insurances	Public Liability: 50million vatu
` ` `		Workers Compensation – as required under
		Vanuatu Law
		Equipment, vehicle and general insurance
5.7.1 (3)	Partial Practical	No Partial Practical Completion Certificates will
. ,		be accepted

GCC Ref.	Heading	Descr	iption
	Completion ("Taking		
<b>500(4)</b>	Over") Certificates	TI A	D ( "" )
5.9.3 (1)	Advance Payment	receipt of an unconding made out to the Emp Value. The bank guaranthe Contractor upon coworks.	orice paid only upon the tional bank guarantee loyer to an equivalent of the shall be returned to empletion of 50% of the ery of Advance payment the payments schedule
5.9.4 (1)	Interim Payment Statements	The Contractor shall substatements as follows:	omit Interim Payments
	Otatomonts	Otatoments as follows.	
		Interim Payments which Contract Price less Concompletion of each Active Example only – to be no	tingency Sum at the vity as specified.
		Serial Mobilisation	Percent 20%
		Change room	25%
		building to lockup	2070
		Change room building services complete	10%
		Stadium seating repairs complete	20%
		Sports facilities repairs complete	5%
		Project Management and WHS and Environmental Controls	10%
		Demobilisation	10%
		Defects Liability	
		invoice noting deduction advance payments and,  2. Submission of Sconformant with the involution  3. Submission of machine Construction Supervisor	chedule of Activities pice amount and, nonthly reports to rand, he clearly marked:

GCC Ref.	Heading	Description	
5.9.6	Payment Retention and Release	<ul> <li>Retention of 10% (which can be included in a Payment Schedule as a final payment)</li> <li>5% to be returned upon issue of Completion Certificate</li> <li>5% retained until Defects Liability Certificate is issued and paid according to the clause.</li> </ul>	
5.10.1	Taxes and Duties	Exclusive of all taxes and duties	
5.12.1	Liquidated Damages	0.2% per day	



Sample forms are attached for use as applicable:

FORM 1	TENDER SECURITY (BANK GUARANTEE)
FORM 2	PERFORMANCE SECURITY (BANK GUARANTEE)
FORM 3	ADVANCE PAYMENT SECURITY (BANK GUARANTEE)
FORM 4	CONTRACT AGREEMENT
FORM 5	PRACTICAL COMPLETION ("TAKING OVER") CERTIFICATE
FORM 6	DEFECTS LIABILITY CERTIFICATE



# Form 1 - Tender Security (Bank Guarantee)

[To be provided on headed notepaper of the bank issuing the guarantee]

To:

Beneficiary: [Enter beneficiary]

Date:

[Enter date]

**TENDER SECURITY No:** [Enter Bank Guarantee Number]

We have been informed that [enter name of the Tenderer] ("the Tenderer") intends to submit to you its Tender ("the Tender") for the execution of [enter name of contract] under RFT Works No. [enter Tender number] ("the RFT").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to your conditions, the Tender must be supported by a Tender Security.

At the request of the Tenderer, we [Enter name of Bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [Enter name of currency and amount in figures and in words]<sup>1</sup> upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Tenderer is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Tender conditions, because the Tenderer:

- (a) Has withdrawn its Tender during the period of Tender validity as specified in the Tendering Document; or
- (b) Does not accept the correction of arithmetical errors as specified in Tendering Document; or
- (c) Having been notified of the acceptance of its Tender during the period of Tender validity, (i) fails to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Tender Document or, (ii) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Agreement.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Tenderer is the successful Tenderer, upon our receipt of copies of the signed contract; or (b) if the Tenderer is not the successful Tenderer, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of your notification that the Tenderer's Tender has not been successful; or (ii) thirty days after the expiration of the Tenderer's Tender.

Consequently, we must receive any demand for payment under this guarantee at our offices on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458.

[Seal of Bank and Signature(s)]



# Form 2 - Performance Security (Bank Guarantee)

[To be provided on headed notepaper of the bank issuing the guarantee]

To:

Beneficiary: [Enter beneficiary]

Date:

[Enter date]

# **PERFORMANCE SECURITY No.:** [Enter Guarantee Number]

We have been informed that [Enter name of the Contractor] ("the Contractor") was awarded a Contract for the Execution of [Enter name of contract and brief description of Works] ("the Contract"), as a result of RFT Works No. [Enter number].

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Tender, a Performance Guarantee is required.

At the request of the Contractor, we [Enter name of the Bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [Enter name of the currency and amount in figures] [Enter name of currency and amount in words]¹ upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Contractor is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without your needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee shall expire no later than [Enter date] <sup>2</sup> and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date. We agree to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [Enter number in words] months, in response to your written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the guarantee.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

[Seal of Bank and Signature(s)]

#### Note:

Insert the amount representing 10% of the Contract Price and denominated in the currency (ies) of the Contract, or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expiry of the defects liability obligations, as provided for under the Tender Document / Contract. The Beneficiary should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract (and therefore of the Defects Liability Period), the Beneficiary will need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Bank, accordingly. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee.



# **FORM 3 - Advance Payment Security (Bank Guarantee)**

[To be provided on headed notepaper of the bank issuing the guarantee]

To:

Beneficiary: [Enter beneficiary]

Date:

[Enter date]

# **ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.:** [Enter Guarantee Number]

We have been informed that [Name of the Contractor] ('the Contractor') has entered into Contract No. [Enter Contract Number] dated [enter date] with you, for the Execution of [Enter description of Works] ('the Contract').

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Terms and Conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum of [Enter name of currency and amount in figures and words] 1 is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Contractor, we [Enter name and address of the Bank] hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [Enter name of the currency and amount in figures and in words]<sup>1</sup> upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Contractor is in breach of its obligations under the Contract.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Contractor in its account number [enter Contractor's account number] at [Enter name and address of the Bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Contractor as stated in copies of submitted invoices which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date the advance payment is received by the Contractor in its bank account until [Insert date]<sup>2</sup>. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date. We agree to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [insert number] months, in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to us before the expiry of the guarantee.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458.

[Seal of Bank and Signature(s)]

#### Notes:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Insert the amount representing the amount of the advance payment, and denominated in the currency (ies) of the Contract, or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Insert the date stipulated in the Contract for completion of works..



FORM 5 - Contract Agreement			
Contract No:			
Brief Description:			

This Contract is made the day of [Enter date] by and between [Enter name and address of Employer] (the 'Employer') on the one part and [Enter name and address of Contractor] (the 'Contractor') on the other part;

Whereas the Employer has accepted the Tender of the Contractor [enter reference number and date] for the execution of such Works in the sum of:

[Employer to enter currency and amount in words and figures]

In this Agreement, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.

The documents constituting the Contract are as shown below in order of precedence and shall be deemed to form and be read as part of this Agreement.

- (a) This Contract Agreement
- (b) The Special Conditions of Contract
- (c) The General Conditions of Contract
- (d) Technical Specifications, Bill of Quantities
- (e) The Contractors Tender and Response Schedules
- (f) Other documents [EMPLOYER to enter as required];

In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete such Works in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

The Employer hereby agrees to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein the Contract Price or other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS of the aforesaid, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in accordance with the laws of the Republic of Vanuatu.

For the Employer		For the Contractor	
Signature:		Signature:	
Date:		Date:	



**TOTAL COST OF WORKS** 

# CONTRACT No.: CONTRACT TITLE/ DESCRIPTION: CONTRACTOR: LOCATION OF WORKS: CONTRACT START DATE: CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE:

DESCRIPTION OF WORKS COVERED BY THIS CERTIFICATE			
1.			

In accordance with the provisions set forth in the Contract Agreement and on the basis of the verification/inspection of completion of the works undertaken by the Employer's Representative on [Enter date of inspection], we hereby certify that the Contractor has satisfactorily and fully completed the scope of works [Employer to enter, including variations, if any] as called for in the Contract Agreement, in accordance with the Schedule of Requirements and associated Construction Schedule, approved plans and technical specifications, and the Price Schedule (whether based on unit prices or lump sum).

The defects liability period commences from the date of Practical Completion and shall remain in effect for [Employer to enter defects liability period] thereafter.

SCHEDULE OF DEFECTS AND/OR OUTSTANDING WORKS AT DATE OF ISSUE OF NOTICE				
LOCATION	DESCRIPTION			

This Certificate likewise provides approval for the release of 50% of the Retention due to the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract.

Practical Completion Date:	Date of Issuance of this Certificate:	
For and on behalf of: [Employer to enter]	Confirming Acceptance for and on behalf of:	
	[Contractor]	
By: [Employer to enter name]	By: [Contractor to enter name]	
[Enter signature]	[Enter signature]	



**Description of Works** 

[Enter signature]

# Form 6 – Defects Liability Certificate

# Contract No. [EMPLOYER to insert]

Location of Works			
Name of Contractor			
Total Cost of Works			
Date Started			
Date Completion of Defects Liability Period			
In accordance with the provisions set forth in the Contract and on the basis of the verification of the completion of notified defects undertaken by the Construction Supervisor on [insert Date of inspection], we hereby certify that the Contractor has satisfactorily and fully completed the Contract as called for in the Contract and in accordance with the Works Programme, approved plans and technical specifications, and any other contractual documents.			
This Certificate likewise provides approval for the release of the Performance Security and remaining Retention Monies due to the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract.			
Issued [Enter date].			
Ву:			
[EMPLOYER to ent			
Construction Sup	who will als	enter name of recipient so sign to confirm the works]	

[Enter signature]